
 

Electronic Meeting Pursuant to Public Act 22-2 Section 163-167. This was a 100% electronic meeting. 

Charter Revision Commission Meeting Minutes  
 

Thursday, October 21st, 2021 

7:00 pm – 8:30 pm 
Virtual Meeting – Zoom 

I. Call to Order – Meeting called to order by Chairman James Woulfe at 7:03pm 
 

II. Roll Call 

Name  Position  Attendance  

James Woulfe Chair Present 

Raul De Jesus, Jr Vice Chair Present 

John Gale Secretary Present 

Alexander Aponte Commissioner Absent 

Arunan Arulampalam Commissioner Absent 

Steve Bonafonte Commissioner Present 

Vicki Gallon-Clark Commissioner  Present 

Kamora Herrington Commissioner  Absent 

Kenneth Kennedy Commissioner  Present 

Kathleen Kowalyshyn Commissioner  Absent 

Melvin Medina Commissioner Present 

Yadira Rivera Commissioner  Present 

Bruce Rubenstein Commissioner Present 

Eon R. Smith, Esq. Commissioner Present 
 

a) Quorum was established.  

i) Also Present: Attorney Steve Mednick,  

III. Approval of Minutes 

a) Chairman Woulfe stated that there was no item on the agenda to allow for approval of minutes. 
Entertained a motion to add an agenda item for approval of minutes.  

b) Motion was made by commissioner De Jesus, Jr and seconded by commissioner Rubenstein. 

Motion passed unanimously.  
 

IV. Discussion was held on in-person meetings.  

a) Chairman Woulfe stated that he would like to move the meetings to in-person.  
b) Commissioner Smith noted that he has a five-month-old and would appreciate additional 

measures be taken to ensure safety if the meetings are moved to in person.  
c) Commissioner Kennedy recommended a rotating schedule.  
d) Chairman Woulfe stated that he would discuss next steps with David Grant and report back. He 

also stated that he is open to hearing ideas on other locations the commission might meet. 
  

V. Panel Discussion regarding public engagement and participation models for BOE. 

a) Attorney Mednick gave background on the panel.  



 
b) Dr. Nuamah introduced herself and her work then provided a brief presentation on public 

participation/engagement to the commission. Sally.nuamah@northwestern.edu  

i) Including scale, what is enough and how do you gather input. 
ii) Who to hold accountable when outcomes are not met. 

iii) Access and tapping into community expertise.  
c) Dr. Collins introduced himself and his work then provided a brief presentation on democratic 

innovation. Jonathan_collins@brown.edu  

i) Public meetings are not being maximized and are in fact simply illusions of democracy.  
ii) Methods local institutions can use to increase public participation.  

(1) Embedding direct response into public comment.  
(2) Review of treatment groups and outcomes.  

 

VI. Chairman Woulfe opened the floor to the commission for questions.  
a) Commissioner Gallon-Clarke asked about community engagement vs community partnership. 

Dr. Nuamah stated that the biggest difference is transparency. Partnership provides a positive 

message to the community that they can be equals in the process. Commissioner Gallon-Clarke 
followed up with how the commission can be more intentional with community input. Dr. 

Nuamah responded that resources could be allocated to help with the public participation 
process. This could be through increased access via locations, childcare, staffing, etc.  

b) Commissioner Rubenstein asked about increasing public engagement by mandating different 

locations be used for meetings. He also asked about appointments vs elections. Dr. Collins 
stated that there are flaws with both models in terms of energizing voters. He then talked about 

at large nominations paired with district voting. He then discussed public demand and getting 
everyone on board in order for it to be successful.  

c) Commissioner Rivera asked the professors to talk about advocating for residents and how to 

ensure more voices are heard at the table. Dr. Nuamah talked about resident representation.  
d) Commissioner Gallon-Clarke asked Dr. Collins why he thinks people are less responsive to the 

give and take that often exists in public meetings i.e public comment. He stated that it depends 
on the genuineness of the process. 

e) Commissioner Medina asked about specific participation recommendations in terms of 

community needs and the issues that permeate Hartford itself. Dr. Collins talked about 
leveraging civic groups to tap into community expertise and mobilizing folks.  

f) Councilman Gale asked about public comment and response from elected/city officials. Dr. 
Collins clarified that a summary response could be used to save time. A discussion on voter 
turnout then took place.  

g) Commissioner Kennedy talked about the role of the commission in terms of submitting 
recommended changes to Council. He then discussed the need to retain institutional memory 

and how to maintain that while still being innovative.  
h) Commissioner De Jesús relayed a constituent question to the panelists concerning the improved 

graduation rate and test scores since altering the Board of Education current model. Dr. 

Nuamah was of the opinion that board structure does not dictate outcomes of student academic 
achievement but are instead a mechanism to provide resources to the district. 

VII. Chairman Woulfe recommended that the discussion on changes to BOE be tabled to a future date.  
 

VIII. The meeting was adjourned at 8:50pm 


